
MEETING AGENDA 
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 

 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER (A108) 

56 CHURCH STREET 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

 
MARCH 13, 2023, 7 P.M. 

___________ 
 

As a matter of convenience, members of the public are invited to listen, observe and participate in public 
meetings by Internet video conference.  Presenters and others interested in a particular matter for discussion 
are encouraged to attend the meeting in-person. The City is not responsible for technical issues that may 
occur that interfere with the virtual meeting. The City Council, at its sole discretion, may proceed with its in-
person business meeting regardless of whether virtual attendees can hear and/or observe the proceedings. 
The City intends to make the meeting available by way of the Zoom app (re:  Meeting ID 801-559-1126, 
password 03132023).   
 
 

1. Approval of the minutes of the February 27, 2023, regular meeting of the City Council.  
 

2. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the sale or disposal of certain surplus property. 
 

3. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the contribution agreement (cost share) with the Mountain Brook 
Board or Education with respect to the Crestline Elementary School Gym project. 
 

4. Consideration: Resolution executing a contractor agreement with Video Industrial Services with respect to 
3333 Sandhurst Road Pipe Project. 

 
5. Consideration: Resolution executing a contractor agreement with Wright Construction Company with 

respect to the Brookwood Baptist Church Drainage Project.  
 

6. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of an agreement with United Ability, Inc. (dba Gone 
for Good Document Destruction and E-Waste Recycling) with respect to a community document 
destruction and e-waste recycling event to be held in Mountain Brook.  

 
7. Comments from residents and attendees 

 
8. Announcement: The next regular meeting of the City Council is March 27, 2023 at 7:00 p.m.  

 
9. Adjourn 



MINUTE BOOK 93 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

FEBRUARY 27, 2023 

449 

[As a convenience, members of the public were invited to listen, observe and participate in the public meeting 
by Internet video conference.] 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met informally in-person at 6:12 p.m. on 
the 2i1i. day of February, 2023 (others were allowed to listen to the meeting by way oflnternet video 
conference). The Council President called the pre-meeting to order and the roll was called with the following 
results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard III, Council President Pro Tempore 
Graham L. Smith 
Gerald A. Gamer 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Stewart Welch III, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Heather 
Richards. 

1. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Council President Virginia Smith made a motion that the City Council convenes in executive 
session to discuss an immediate litigation matter and that the City Council shall reconvene upon 
conclusion of the executive session. The City Attorney certified that the subject matters were allowed 
to be discussed in executive pursuant to Alabama Law. The motion was seconded by Council 
President Pro Tempore Pritchard. Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, the vote was 
recorded as follows: 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

2. AGENDA 

Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard III, Council President Pro Tempore 
Gerald A. Gamer 
Graham L. Smith 
Lloyd C. Shelton 

None 

1. Crestline "flats" drainage project options 

Mark Simpson-Schoel Engineering 
• The study has been completed 
• Open channel crosses 4 streets (Spring St, East Street, Honeysuckle, and W. Montcrest) 
• Determined the flooding issue is isolated to lower end (W. Montcrest and Honeysuckle) 

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2023\20230227 Minutes.docx February 27, 2023 



450 MINUTE BOOK 93 

• The fix would be to replace the culvert at W. Montcrest (The cost would be about $700,000-
$800,000) 

• On W. Montcrest there is a detached building used as an entertainment area, homeowners 
stated that water has been in that building 

• No one has communicated that there has been water in any finished portion of residential 
homes 

Sam Gaston-City Manager 
• Many years ago the city put in a drainage pipe, at homeowners expense, for a homeowner that 

lived on W. Montcrest (next to the channel) 
• After the drainage pipe was installed, the homeowner did an extension that included a head 

wall and a fence (which created a dam) 
• A lawsuit was filed among several homeowners and the homeowners was forced to tear out 

the additions 
• The City, at that time, adopted new policies that ditches would not be piped until an 

engineering study was done to verify the pipe would not make the problem worse and would 
improve the situation 

Billy Pritchard-Council President Pro Tempore 
• The problems created by that homeowner several years ago caused several houses to be 

flooded that lived beside the creek 
• Since that incident several years ago, not aware of any houses that has had any water in their 

house due to flooding 

David Nelson-31 Honeysuckle Lane 
• Flooding in the ditches has gotten worse 
• In the May 4th storm, water was a step away from being in his house 
• Concerned the flooding will get worse and his house will flood 

Jeremy Dennis-42 W. Montcrest Drive 
• Has a detached building in his yard 
• Flooding is happening 4 to S times a year 
• When flooding occurs, has about 6 inches of water in the detached building 

Virginia Smith-Council President 
• Inquired if cleaning out the channel would have help the flooding on W. Montcrest 

Mark Simpson 
• It would not change the issue at W. Montcrest 
• It would make the channel more efficient throughout the study area 
• The price for this project is so large because a full length of culvert is needed 
• This project will not solve the problem but it would greatly improve the problem 

Billy Pritchard 
• Would like to take it under advisement 

Graham Smith-Council Member 
• Inquired if anything specifically could be done for the homeowners that are affected 

Mark Simpson 
• Would have to look more closely at the stream 
• There are options available 

J:\..\1inutes & Agendas\Council\2023\20230227 Minutes.docx February 27, 2023 



MINUTE BOOK 93 

Lloyd Shelton-Council Member 
• Want to see ifthere are alternatives (that would be equally impactful) 

Virginia Smith 
• Will have engineers study it further 

2. Cherry/Lorena/Euclid drainage bid 

Mark Simpson-Schoel Engineering 
• Went back to Gillespie Construction (the only bidder) to request a reduction in price 
• Agreed to a $25,000 reduction bringing the bid down to $892,360 

Virginia Smith 
• Item added to the formal agenda (Resolution No. 2023-036) 

3. Proposed contract with The Friends of Jemison Park for improvements to the Jemison Park 
Nature Trail 

Shanda Williams-Parks and Recreation Director 
• The Friends of Jemison finished Irondale Furnace 

451 

• They want to improve the Nature Trail for when they close Jemison Park, the trails will be in 
good shape 

Virginia Smith-Council President 
• Items added to the formal agenda (Resolution No. 2023-037) 

4. Leaf Season update 

Ronnie Vaughn-Public Works Director 
• Took over the loose leaf collection this year 
• Did not have any missed leaf collections 
• Picked up 7383 piles and brought in 552 loads 
• His employees went the extra mile and he is very proud of them 

5. Conditional Use request for Stretch Zone located at 229 Country Club Park 

Dana Hazen-Director of Planning, Building, and Sustainability 
• This is the same location that Magic City Cheer was going to occupy 
• 13 surplus parking spaces, will have 10 surplus parking spaces if approved 

Virginia Smith 
• Item added to the formal agenda (Resolution No. 2023-038) 

6. Review of the other matters to be considered at the formal (7:00p.m.) meeting 

2. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further matters for discussion Council President Virginia Smith adjourned the 
pre-meeting at approximately 6:57 pm. 

3. CERTIFICATION 

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2023\20230227 Minutes.docx February 27, 2023 



452 MINUTE BOOK 93 

I, Heather Richards, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true 
and correct synopsis of the discussion from the regular session of the City Council of the City of Mountain 
Brook, Alabama held at City Hall, Pre-Council Room (A-106) on February 27, 2023, and that the meeting was 
duly called and held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City 
and that no formal action or votes were conducted at said work session. 

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2023\20230227 Minutes.docx 

City Clerk, Approved by 
City Council March 13, 2023 

February 27, 2023 



MINUTE BOOK 93 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

FEBRUARY 27, 2023 

453 

(As a convenience, members of the public were invited to listen, observe and participate in the public meeting 
by Internet video conference.] 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in person at 7:00 p.m. on the 27th day 
of February, 2023 (others were allowed to listen to the meeting by way of Internet video conference). The 
Council President Virginia Smith called the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard III, Council President Pro Tempore 
Graham L. Smith 
Gerald A. Gamer 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Stewart Welch III, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorney Steve Stine, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Heather 
Richards. 

The Council President Virginia Smith stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open 
for the transaction of business 

1. INTRODUCTION OF SPECIAL GUESTS-BOY SCOUT 

Evelyn Goldman with Troup 86 Gout of St. Luke's Episcopal Church 
• Working on Citizens in Community Merit Badge 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President Virginia Smith announced that the following matters will be considered at 
one time on the consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the February 13, 2023, regular meeting of the City Council 

2023-035 

2023-036 

2023-037 

2023-038 

Authorize the sale or disposal of certain surplus property 

Award the bid [B-20230109-838] for the Cherry Street, Euclid 
A venue, Lorena Lane and Fairmont Drive Drainage 
Improvements project to Gillespie Construction LLC 

Execute a contract agreement with The Friends of Jemison Park 
with respect to the Nature Trail Improvement Project 

Approve the conditional use application (Stretch Zone) located 
at 229 Country Club Park 

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2023\20230227 Minutes.docx 

Exhibit 1, 
Appendix 1 

Exhibit 2, 
Appendix2 

Exhibit 3, 
Appendix 3 

Exhibit 4, 
Appendix4 

February 27, 2023 



454 MINUTE BOOK 93 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes and resolutions (Nos. 2023-035 through 2023-038), were 
introduced by Council President Virginia Smith and a motion for their immediate adoption made by 
Council Member Shelton. The minutes and resolutions were then considered by the City Council. 
Council Member Graham Smith seconded the motion to adopt the foregoing minutes and resolutions. 
Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard III, Council President Pro Tempore 
Graham L. Smith 
Gerald A. Garner 
Lloyd C. Shelton 

Nays: None 

Abstained: None 

Council President Virginia Smith thereupon declared that said minutes and resolutions (Nos. 
2023-035 through 2023-038) were adopted by a vote of 5-0 and as evidence thereof she signed the 
same. 

3. ANNOUNCEMENT 

Council President Virginia Smith announced the next regular meeting of the City Council is 
March 13, 2023, 7:00p.m. 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Council President Virginia 
Smith adjourned the meeting at approximately 7:03 p.m. 

5. CERTIFICATION 

I, Heather Richards, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is 
a true and correct transcript of the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama held at City Hall, Council Chamber (Room A-108) on February 27, 2023, and that the 
meeting was duly called and held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama 
and bylaws of the City and that a quorum was present. 

City Clerk Approved by 
City Council March 13, 2023 

EXHIBIT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-035 

WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain items of personal property 
which are no longer needed for public or municipal purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Section 11-43-56 of the Alabama Code of 1975 authorizes the municipal 
governing body to dispose of unneeded personal property. 

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2023\20230227 Minutes.docx February 27, 2023 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-039 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OR DISPOSAL 
OF CERTAIN SURPLUS PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain items of personal property which are 
no longer needed for public or municipal purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Section 11-43-56 of the Alabama Code of 1975 authorizes the municipal governing 
body to dispose of unneeded personal property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, as 
follows: 

Section 1. It is hereby established and declared that the following equipment owned by the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama is no longer needed for public or municipal purposes and is hereby declared surplus 
property: 

Item Manufacturer Model Number 

Sod Cutter NIA Ryan Jr. 18" 
1 

Trailer (6'x10') 
NIA NIA 1 

Welder NIA Big40g 1 
Trailer (83"x12') NIA NIA 1 
Turf Trailer NIA NIA 1 
Tractor John Deere 850 1 
Lot of computer 

NIA NIA 1 monitors 

Section 2. That the City Manager, or his designated representative, is hereby authorized and directed to sell 
said property by way of public Internet auction or to dispose of said items not sold. 

ADOPTED: This 13th day of March, 2023. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 13th day of March, 2023. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Heather Richards, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at its 
meeting held on March 13, 2023, as same appears in the minutes ofrecord of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Surplus Property 2023-039 



Sod Cutter 

Ryan Jr. 18" 



Trailer 

6'x10' light duty 



Welder 

Towable Miller Big40g 

Discontinued parts 



Trailer 

Turf trailer 1 

83"x12' 



Trailer 

Turf trailer 2 



Tractor 

John Deere 850 



3/1 0/23, 11 :00 AM 

City of 
Mountain Brook 

for gov deals auction 
1 message 

Gilbert Aban <abang@mtnbrook.org> 

City of Mountain Brook Mail - for gov deals auction 

Heather Richards <richardsh@mtnbrook.org> 

Wed, Mar 1, 2023 at 10:46 AM 
To: Heather Richards <richardsh@mtnbrook.org>, Steve O'Dell <odells@mtnbrook.org> 

1 lot computer monitors 

Serial#s 

cnp520x9w2 
3cq51804bn 
cn509j0vj 
cnk83220f46 
tsp 15152a3580 
cnk8150nqn 
cnc931qj01t 
cnc304qn5r 
cn-w5hwr 

Thank you, 

Gilbe1t Aban 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

JI,,. ( rt \' ,r;j 

MOUNTAIN 
BROOK 

[p] 205 802 3819 
[f] 205 874 0619 
[e] abang#mtr.brook.org 
[ w J W\'Vw.rntnbrook.org 
[a] 56 Church St. Mountain Brook, .AL 35213 

Avoid Ma/ware and Scams -Always stop, look, and think before you click! 

1. Don't click on suspicious e-mail attachments: Most viruses and worms a"ive on y_our PC in the form of e-mail 
attachments. 
2. Be cautious of the return address: Though an e-mail message may claim it's from your bank, your ISP, or even your 
boss, that doesn't mean it is. 
3. Be cautious of the message: To persuade you to launch a virus-laden mail attachment or provide your personal 
information, virus authors must earn your trust. 
4. Be cautious of the link: A link in an e-mail message that claims to point to a bank (ex.) web site may not really go there. 

*** If you suspect or detect any suspicious activity please notify us immediately. *** 

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=80a4 775052&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A 1759184857983000021 &simpl=msg-f%3A 1759184857... 1 /1 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-040 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby authorizes the execution of a contribution agreement (costs sharing) between the City and 
Mountain Brook Board of Education with respect to the Crestline Elementary School Gymnasium project. 

ADOPTED: This 13th day of March, 2023. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 13th day of March, 2023. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Heather Richards, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above 
to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its regular meeting held on March 13, 2023, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Crestline Gym Cost Sharing Agreement 2023-040 



CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT 

Tms CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into as of the 31st day of 
January, 2023 (the l'Effective Date") by and among the City of Mountain Brook, an Alabama municipal 
corporation (the "City"), and the Mountain Brook City Board of Education, a quasi-corporation and 
agency and instrumentality of the State of Alabama {the "Board"). 

RECITALS': 

A. The Board owns certain property located in the Crestline neighborhood of the City, where Crestline 
Elementary School is located (the "Property"). 

B. The City and the Board wish to improve the Crestline School facilities, as well as provide additional 
space for recreation for the children and citizens of the City, specifically, Mountain Brook Athletics. 

C. The City and the Board have determined that it is in the best interest of the schools and the City to 
build an new gymnasium at Crestline Elementary School (the "Project"). 

D. The Project will be constructed on the Board's Property and will be paid for jointly by contributions 
from the Board and the City. 

E. The City and the Board wish to confirm their agreement for the Project by this Agreement. 

Now, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises, and the agreements, covenants, 
representations and warranties hereinafter set forth, and other gOQd and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are acknowledged and confirmed, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. PROPERTY DILIGENCE. 

1.1 Plans. The Board shall be responsible for obtaining the plans for the Project. The Board 
shall consult with the City on those plans for final approval by and among the City and the Board. 

1.2 Entitlements and Approvals. The Board shall be responsible for all entitlements and 
approvals permits, licenses, variances, special exceptions, conditional use authorizations, zoning changes 
and other governmental approvals that are required for the Project. 

2. PROPERTY OPERATION. 

2.1 Cooperation and Management. After the Effective Date, the Board agrees to allow the 
City and its agents to enter the Property for the devel<>pment, construction and items related thereto for the 
Project and to maintain its existing property insurance policy covering the Property in full force and effect. 

2.2 Updates. The Board agrees that until the Project is completed it will promptly notify the 
City, in writing, if the Board obtains knowledge or receives written notice of (a) any event which has or is 
likely to have an adverse effect on the operation, physical condition or financial condition of the Property, 
(b) any violation, potential violation or alleged violation of any legal requirements or the encumbrances 
related to the Property, (c) any legal action or governmental proceeding related to the Property or which 
may affect the City's ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement, (d) any default under any 
agreement related to the Property, ( e) any damage to or destruction of the Property by fire or other casualty, 
or (f) any actual., pending or threatened tal<ing of the Property by condemnation or eminent domain. 



3. DEVELOPMENT. 

3.1 Construction of the Project. The Board shall take the lead in obtaining bids for the costs 
of the Project and shall be responsible for hiring and contracting with the appropriate architect, contractor 
and project manager to be responsible for and oversee the development and construction of the Project. 

3.2 Fituzncing. The City and the Board agree that the costs of the Project have been estimated 
to be Six Million and Forty-Eight Thousand Dollars ($6,048,000) ("Construction Cost Estimate"). The 
City and The Board agree that the construction costs shall be paid through the following contribution 
percentages until such time as all construction costs, including, but not limited to the Construction Cost 
Estimate and any increases, add-ons, change orders, or cost overruns ("Construction Costs"): 

( 1) The Board shall contribute Seventy-Eight Percent (78%) of all Construction Costs 
and the City shall contribute Twenty-Two Percent (22%) of all Construction Costs. The City shall pay the 
Board its portion of the Construction costs over Ten ( 10) years. The total Construction Costs shall be 
multiplied by Twenty-Two Percent (22%) and then divided by ten and that is the annual amount that the 
City shall pay to the Board each year fot Ten ( l 0) years. 

4. MISCELLANEOUS. 

4.1 Consents, Approvals and Discretion. Except as herein expressly provided to the contrary, 
whenever this Agreement requires any consent or approval to be given by a party, or whenever a party must 
or may exercise discretion, the parties agree that such consent or approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed and such discretion shall be reasonably exercised. 

4.2 Choice of Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed by and construed 
in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama without regard to conflict of l~ws principles. 

4.3 Benefit/Assignment. Subject to provisions herein to the contrary, this Agreement shall 
inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective legal representatives, 
successors, and assigns. No party may assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other 
parties; provided, however, that any party may, without the prior written consent of the other parties, assign 
its rights and delegate its duties hereunder to one or more·affiliates, but in such event, the assignor shall be 
required to remain obligated hereunder in the same manlier as if such assignment had not been affected. 

4.4 Waiver o/Breach. The waiver by any party of a breach or violation of any provfsion of 
this Agreement shall not operate as, or be construed to constitute, a waiver of any subsequent breach of the 
same or any other provision hereof. 

4.5 Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable for any reason and in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall in no 
event affect, prejudice, or disturb the validity of the remainder of this Agreement; which shall be and remain 
in full force and effect, enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

4.6 Gender and Number. Whenever the context of this Agreement requires, the gender of all 
words herein shall include the masculine, feminine, and neuter, and the number of all words herein shall 

include the singular and plural. 

4.7 Divisions and Headings. The divisions of this Agreement into sections and subsections 
and the use of captions and headings in connection therewith are solely for convenience and shall have no 
legal effect in construing the provisions of this Agreement. 

2 



4.8 No Partnership or Joint Venture. The terms and provisions of this agreement are intended 
solely to create a Contribution Agreement and are not intended and do not create any partnership or joint 
venture between the Parties hereto. 

4.9 Third-Party Beneficiaries. The terms and provisions of this Agreement are intended solely 
for the benefit of the City and the Board and their respective permitted successors or assigns, and it is not 
the intention of the parties to confer, and this Agreement shall not confer, third-party beneficiary rights 
upon any other person. 

4.10 Enforcement of Agreement. The parties hereto agree that irreparable damage would occur 
in the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement was not performed in accordance with its specific 
terms or was otherwise breached. It is accordingly agreed that the parties shall be entitled to an injunction 
or injunctions to prevent breaches of this Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions 
hereof in any court of competent jurisdiction, this being in addition to any other remedy to which they are 
entitled at law or in equity. 

4.1'1 Entire Agreement/Amendment. This Agreement supersedes all previous contracts or 
understandings, including any offers, letters of intent, proposals or letters of understanding, and constitutes 
the entire agreement of whatsoever kind or nature existing between or among the parties respecting the 
within subject matter, and no party shall be entitled to benefits other than those specified herein. As between 
or among the parties, no oral statements or prior written material not specifically incorporated herein shall 
be of any force and effect. The parties specifically acknowledge that in entering into and executing this 
Agreement, the parties rely solely upon the representations and agreements contained in this Agreement 
and no others. All prior representations or agreements, whether written or verbal, not expressly incorporated 
herein are superseded, and no changes in or additions to this Agreement shall be recognized unless and until 
made in writing and signed by all parties hereto. 

4.12 Counterptl,rts- . This Agreement may be executed in separate counterparts. Each such 
counterpart shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. The 
signature pages and notary acknowledgments, if any, from one or more separate executed counterparts may 
be combined together with one or more other separate executed counterparts to form a single document. 
This Agreement shall be fully executed when each party whose signature is required has signed and 
delivered at least one (I) counterpart even. though no one (I) counterpart contains the signatures of all of 
the parties to this Agreement. This Agreement and any instrument, document or agreement to be executed 
or delivered in connection herewith may be executed and delivered by facsimile transmission, electronic 
mail or other electronic means and the electronic signature ofa party, or a signature transmitted or delivered 
by ~lectronic means, shall be binding upon such party as fully as though such signature was executed and 
delivered in person. An electronic or photocopy of this Agreement, certified as being in full force and 
effect, shall be admissible into evidence in any judicial proceeding and no party shall be required to produce 
the copy of this Agreement containing the original signatures of the parties. 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

3 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the 
Effective Date. 

vError! Unknown.document property name. 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 
An Alabama municipal corporation 

By: _____ ____ _ 
Name: ___________ _ 
Title: ___________ _ 

4 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-041 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to execute a contractor agreement, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, 
between the City and Video Industrial Services with respect to 3333 Sandhurst Road Pipe Project. 

ADOPTED: This 13th day of March, 2023. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 13th day of March, 2023. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Heather Richards, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
hereby certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council 
of the City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on March 13, 2023, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Video Industrial Services/Sandhurst Road Pipe project 2023-041 



VIDEO INDUSTRIAL SERVICES 
7721 2nd Avenue North 
Birmingham, AL 35206 

p: (205) 798-0300 
f: (205) 798-6211 

A Carylon Company 

PRICE PROPOSAL 

TO: City of Mountain Brook 

ADDRESS: 3579 East Street 

Birmingham, Alabama 

35243 

ATTN: 

DATE: 

RE: 

www.videoindustrial.com 

Daniel Davis <davisda@mtnbrook.org> 

3/1/2023 

3333 Sandhurst Road 190' 48" RCP & 36" CMP 

Storm Drain Lining in Repsonse to Sinkholes 

VIS is pleased to provide you with pricing for this project. For this project, we propose to provide the necessary labor, equipment, 

material, and supervision to perform the following scope of work on the above referenced project. Proposed pricing for this work is as 

follows: 

Bid Item Unit Estimated Qty Item Unit Price Item Total 

Labor and Materials to Install Concrete Invert Build and Hole Fill LF 190 $100.00 $19,000.00 

Labor and Materials to Install 1" Cement Spin cast Uner LF 190 $150.00 $28,500.00 

Traffic Control LS 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 

Total $49,000.00 

Remarks: Invert must be poured before spin cast can be completed. We will have to block Sandhurst Road to thru traffic due to blind 

hill approach on work zone. All local traffic will still be able to access driveways. 

This pricing is submitted under the assumption that the job will be completed in whole. We reserve the right to modify this proposal if the 

jobsite conditions vary widely. Subject to the attached Terms & Conditions on Page 2. Pricing is good for 30 days from the date of this 

proposal. If this proposal is satisfactory, please sign below and return. Thank you for the opportunity to work with you on this project. 

Unless otherwise stated, hourly rate pricing is portal-to-portal from our office. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Video Industrial Services, Inc. 

Heath Nelson 

Project Manager 

Accepted: 

Name: 

Company: 

Signature: 

Date: 



VIDEO INDUSTRIAL SERVICES, INC. 
GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS 

General Conditions: These general conditions are incorporated by reference into the proposal by and are part of the 

Agreement under which services are to be performed by the Contractor for the Customer. 

Customer Supplied Labor: Where the Customer supplies labor for the Contractor, the Customer will indemnify the 

Contractor for liability, loss or expense for work related injuries to the Customer's employees. The Customer agrees to 

waive all rights or subrogation against the Contractor arising out of the work in this Agreement. 

Damage Limitations: Under no circumstances will the Contractor be responsible for indirect, incidental or consequential 

damages. The Contractor also is not responsible for the rendering of or failure to render architectural, engineering or 

surveying professional services. 

Preexisting Conditions: The Contractor will not be responsible for liability, loss or expense (including damage caused by the 

backup of basement sewers) where the primary cause of the claim or damage is preexisting conditions including faulty, 

inadequate or defective design, construction, maintenance or repair of property or contamination of the subsurface where 

the condition existed prior to the start of the Contractor's work. Customer is responsible for loss of service equipment 

caused by the preexisting conditions at the jobsite. 

Environmental Conditions: The debris is represented to Contractor to be non-hazardous, requiring no manifesting or special 

permitting. The Customer will be responsible for any additional costs or claims associated with the treatment, storage, 

disposal of the removed debris, or breach of the above representation, at any time during or after the completion of this 

project. 

Indemnification: The Customer and Contractor will each indemnify the other for liability, loss and expense incurred by the 

other party resulting from a negligent act or omission in performance of work under this Agreement. If both parties are 

jointly at fault, each will indemnify the other in proportion to their relative fault. The Customer also will indemnify 

Contractor for liability, loss and expense resulting from Contractor's services if the Contractor is acting at the direction or 

instruction of the Customer, or where the primary cause of any damages is due to information provided by the Customer. 

Credit Policy: Regular Terms are Net 30 Days. The company may charge interest at the rate of 1-1/2% per month on all 

invoices outstanding 60 days past invoice date. 

Entire Agreement: This proposal together with any written documents which may be incorporated by specific reference 

herein constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all previous communications between them, 

either oral or written. The waiver by contractor of any term, condition or provision herein stated shall not be construed to 

be a waiver of any other term, condition or provision hereof. 



MOUNTAIN BROOK~AL 
3333 SANHURST ROAD 3333 Sandhurst Rd 

g:p DEFECTIVE 48" RCP X 36" CMP 



I MP ¥1 464 · 5
1 

• ~ ~'.~ ·1r· , ◄ . I; ::.:: ~:.:;: l ~~~~~ 
MOUNTAIN BROOK AL Legend 

·~ 3333 Sandhurst Rd 

~ DEFECTIVE STORM PIPE 

# WORKZONE 





,-------~·: --.... 















CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

Video Industrial Services ("Contractor") enters this Contractor Agreement 
("Agreement") with the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, a municipal corporation 
("City"), effective as of the date last executed by a party below (the "Effective Date"). 
Contractor and City may be individually referenced herein as "Party" or collectively as 
"Parties." 

1. Project. Unless otherwise stated on the attached Exhibit A - Specifications 
(which is incorporated by reference), Contractor, at its expense, will furnish all the labor, 
materials, supplies, supervision, and equipment needed to perform the work, services and 
operations (collectively, the "Work") on the understated project (the Project") 

Name of Project: 3333 Sandhurst Road Pipe Project 

Site of Project: 3333 Sandhurst Road 
Mountain Brook, AL 35223 

2. Scope of Work. See Exhibit A (which includes the City Scope of Work, if 
any, the March 1, 2023 Contractor Proposal, hereinafter the "Contractor Proposal" and 
related photographs of the location and conditions at the Project site) that is attached and 
incorporated herein. 

3. Undertaking of Parties. Contractor agrees to perform the Work in 
accordance with the terms, conditions and specification in this Agreement and on Exhibit 
A. City agrees to compensate Contractor and perform its other responsibilities set forth 
in the Contract Documents. 

4. Termffermination. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the 
Effective Date and thereafter continue in effect for six (6) months (the "Term"). The 
period in which Contractor will complete the Project is set forth on Exhibit A. 

Notwithstanding the provision immediately above or any other language herein, 
City may terminate this Agreement before the expiration of its Term at the time 
designated in a written notice to Contractor if each of the following have occurred: (a) 
Contractor has defaulted on a material obligation to the City hereunder (a "Default"); and 
(b) following the City's provision of written notice of Default to Contractor, the 
Contractor fails to correct or remedy that Default within fifteen (15) days after receipt of 
that notice. The failure of the Contractor to timely perform the Work shall be considered 
an event of Default. This remedy is in addition to any other provided in the Agreement 
or available to City under law or in equity. 

Contractor's obligations herein shall survive the termination or expiration of the 
Term for these periods: Section 6(f) (Warranty on workmanship and materials) for one 
year following Project acceptance; other warranties in Section 6 for a period of one year, 
and Section 7(c) (Indemnification) for a period of two (2) years. 

1 



5. Contract Price/Invoice/Certification. Unless otherwise stated in the Special 
Conditions on Exhibit A or agreed in a writing signed by the Parties, City will pay 
Contractor the lump sum amount of Forty-Nine Thousand Dollars ($49,000.00) as 
compensation for performing the Work (the "Contract Price"). Unless agreed in a writing 
signed by duly authorized representatives of both parties, the total amount payable to the 
Contractor for the Work shall not exceed the Contract Price (and agreed sum(s) payable 
for any Additional Operations contemplated on Exhibit A). In no event will the total 
amount paid to Contractor for its Work (including the Contract Price or any amount paid 
for Additional Operations) exceed $50,000.00. 

The City will pay the Lump Sum amount of the Contract Price for this Project at 
the following time. Within ten (10) days following the successful completion of the 
Project, Contractor will submit to City Project Representative an invoice for the Contract 
Price (as adjusted by any mutually agreed change orders signed by both parties). With 
such invoice Contractor shall submit records reasonably supporting its request for 
payment. Within five (5) days following receipt of that invoice, City Project 
Representative will review same, consult with Contractor and make any mutually agreed 
modifications to it, certify that the invoice is due to be paid, and forward that certified 
invoice to the City Clerk. The City Clerk will remit to the Contractor the amount 
certified for payment within twenty (20) days after it receives that certification. 

6. Warranties of Contractor. The Contractor warrants each of the following 
with respect to its Work: 

(a) that it expeditiously will perform its Work in a good and workmanlike 
manner that is consistent with level of skill and care that would be 
provided by other contractors performing operations under the same or 
similar conditions, and in accordance with the Project schedule; 

(b) that it, and all of its employees or any subcontractors (if authorized), 
will complete the Work in compliance with all codes, laws and 
regulations that are applicable to the Project; 

( c) that before commencing the Work, at its own expense, the Contractor 
will obtain all licenses, permits or other governmental authorizations 
needed to complete the Project, including without limitation, a 
business license and building permit issued by the City ( collectively, 
"Licensing"). Contractor further agrees to maintain that Licensing 
throughout the performance of the Project; 

( d) that it has inspected the Site and any other locations at which it will 
perform the Work, and, based on that inspection and its expertise, that 
it has determined that each of those locations is reasonably suitable for 
Contractor to complete the Work; 

2 



( e) that the Contractor shall be responsible to remove and properly dispose 
of any debris related to its completion of the Project, and that it will 
leave each location where the Work is performed in reasonably clean 
condition; 

(f) that the Work will be free of any material defects in workmanship and 
materials for a period of one (1) year that shall commence on the date 
of acceptance of the Project; and 

(g) that all actions required to be taken by or on behalf of the Contractor to 
enter or execute this Agreement, and to perform its obligations and 
agreements hereunder, have been duly taken, and the person signing 
below on behalf of Contractor is authorized to execute this Agreement. 

7. Insurance/Safety/Indemnification. 

(a) Insurance. For the duration of this Agreement and for limits not less than 
stated below, Contractor, at its sole expense, shall maintain the following insurance with 
a company(ies) lawfully authorized to do business in Alabama and reasonably acceptable 
to City: 

(i) Comprehensive General Liability: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000), 
combined single limit and aggregate for bodily injury and property 
damage. This Comprehensive General Liability policy shall include 
coverage for premises/operations, products/completed operations, 
assumed contractual obligations, subcontractors, and broad form property 
damage; 

(ii) Automobile Liability: Automobile Liability covering owned and 
rented vehicles operated with policy limits of not less than One Million 
Dollars ($1,000,000), combined single limit and aggregate for bodily 
injury and property damage; 

(iii) Workers Compensation/Employer's Liability: Workers' 
Compensation as required by statute and Employer's Liability with limits 
of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) per occurrence. 

The Contractor may satisfy its insurance obligations hereunder through a combination of 
primary, umbrella and excess policies. Before the execution of this Agreement, the 
Contractor shall provide City a certificate(s) of insurance evidencing compliance with the 
requirements in this section. The certificate shall name City as an additional insured on 
the Comprehensive General Liability, Automobile Liability, and any applicable umbrella 
and excess policies. 

The City will not furnish any type, form, coverage or amount of insurance in 
connection with the Project. 

3 



(b). Safety. Contractor agrees that it (a) has the sole responsibility to identify any 
condition or hazard at the Site or other locations on City property that will prevent it from 
safely performing the Work, and (b) is exclusively responsible for performing the Work 
in a safe manner that does not put at risk the safety of persons or endanger property. 
Contractor shall take all reasonable precautions for the safety of, and shall provide all 
reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to: (i) its employees and all other 
persons who may be affected by the Work; (ii) all the Work and all materials and 
equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the Site, or under the 
care, custody or control of the Contractor or any of its representatives; and (iii) other 
property at the Work Site or adjacent thereto. 

( c ). Indemnification. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
City and its agents, employees and officials (hereinafter collectively, the "Indemnitees") 
from and against all demands, actions, liabilities, expenses (including reasonable 
attorney's fees) or claims for damages by any third parties (including any employee, 
subcontractor or representative of the Contractor, hereafter a "Contractor 
Representative") that arise out of, relate to or are caused by any negligent act, omission 
or conduct by Contractor or any Contractor Representative in performing or failing to 
perform the Work or its ( or their) responsibilities under this Agreement; provided that 
nothing herein shall obligate the Contractor to indemnify any of the Indemnitees for any 
claims resulting from the negligent conduct or the willful misconduct of the lndemnitees. 

The City will not indemnify Contractor ( or nay of its representatives or authorized 
subcontractors) for any claims that relate to or arise out of the Project. 

( d). Limitation of Liability. In no event may Contractor recover from the City 
any special, incidental, consequential or any other indirect damages whatsoever of any 
description (including, without limitation, damages for lost profits, lost advantage, lost 
opportunity, loss of savings or revenues or for increased cost of operations) or amount 
arising from the City's breach of its obligations hereunder. 

8. Project Representative. Each Party shall appoint and indicate on Exhibit A its 
representative who shall coordinate with the other Party on all matters related to the 
performance of the Work and the administration of this Agreement (the "Project 
Representative"). Any notice required hereunder shall be sufficiently given when sent to 
the appropriate Project Representative via United States certified mail, return receipt 
requested, or via overnight courier with receipt verification to the address set forth herein, 
or by personally delivering such notice to the party to be in receipt thereof. 

9. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

a. Entire Agreement. This Agreement which is comprised of this instrument, the 
City Scope of Work (if any), and the March 1, 2023 Contractor Proposal (collectively, 
the "Contract Documents") sets forth the entire understanding between the Parties 
concerning the matters herein, and all oral representations, prior negotiations, 
understandings, agreements, conditions, and terms discussed between them prior to 

4 



acceptance and signing of this Agreement are deemed to have merged herein. In the 
event of any conflict or inconsistency between provisions in the various Contract 
Documents, the provision(s) in the document in the order below shall control and take 
precedence: (1) this Agreement; (2) the City Scope of Work (if any); and (3) the 
Contractor Proposal. 

b. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts each of which 
when executed by the Parties shall be deemed to be a complete original. An electronic or 
facsimile copy of the executed contract or counterpart shall have the same legal force and 
effect as an original document. 

c. No Waiver. Any forbearance or delay on the part of City in enforcing any of 
its rights under this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of such rights. No 
terms of this Agreement shall be waived unless expressly waived in writing. 

d. No Assignment. Contractor may not assign its rights, obligations or the 
benefits of this Agreement to any third party without the written consent of City, which 
consent may be withheld for any reason. 

e. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made only for the benefit of 
the Parties. It is not intended, nor shall it be construed, to grant or bestow any benefit, 
right or privilege to any third party. 

f. Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor of City. This 
Agreement does not create any partnership, joint venture or principal-agent relationship 
between the Parties. Further, City retains no control or authority with respect to its 
means and methods in which Contractor ( or any of its employees or representatives) 
performs the Work. 

g. Immigration Law Compliance. Contractor represents and warrants to the City 
that: (i) it does not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ, in 
Alabama, an "unauthorized alien," as defined by the Beason-Hammon Alabama 
Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, §31-13-1, et seq., Code of Alabama 1975, as 
amended (the "Act"); (ii) it will enroll in the E-Verify program prior to performing any 
work on the Project in Alabama and shall provide documentation establishing that it is 
enrolled in the E-Verify program. During the performance of this Agreement, the 
Contractor shall participate in the E-V erify program as required under the terms of the 
Act and shall verify every employee in Alabama that is required to be verified according 
to the applicable federal rules and regulations; (iii) it will comply with all applicable 
provisions of the Act with respect to subcontractors, if any, that it engages on the Project 
by entering into an agreement with or by obtaining an affidavit from such subcontractors 
providing work on the Project in Alabama that such subcontractors are in compliance 
with the Act with respect to their participation in the E-verify program. Contractor 
further represents and warrants that it shall not hire, retain or contract with any 
subcontractor to work on the Project in Alabama which it knows is not in compliance 
with the Act; and (iv) by signing this Agreement, it affirms, for the duration of the 

5 



Agreement, that it will not violate federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for 
employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. 
Furthermore, if Contractor is found to be in violation of this provision, it shall be deemed 
in breach of the Agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom. 

h. Amendment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the provisions herein 
(including, without limitation, those concerning the Scope, Project Schedule and Contract 
Price) may be amended or modified except in accordance with the terms of a written 
instrument (or change order) signed by both Parties. 

j. Delayed Performance/Force Majeure Events. Neither Party shall be liable to the 
other for any failure to perform its respective obligations (including payment obligations) 
under this Agreement during any period in which its performance is delayed by 
circumstances beyond its reasonable control, such as fire, flood, war, embargo, strike, 
riot, or the intervention of any governmental authority (a "Force Majeure Event"). 
However, the delayed Party must promptly provide the other with written notice of the 
Force Majeure Event, the delayed Party's time for performance will be excused only for 
the duration of that Event, and, if that Event lasts longer than 30 days, then the other 
Party may immediately terminate, in whole or in part, this Agreement by giving written 
notice to the delayed Party. 

k. Open Trade. Pursuant to Ala. Code§ 41-16-5 (1975), Contractor represents 
and agrees that, by entering the Agreement, it is not currently engaged in, nor will it 
engage in, any boycott of a person or entity based in or doing business with a jurisdiction 
with which the State of Alabama can enjoy open trade. 

1. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, enforced, and 
construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Alabama (herein the "Applicable 
Law"). 

m. Ineffective Provisions in Contractor Documents. Notwithstanding any 
provisions, terms or conditions expressed in the Contractor Proposal, in any statement of 
Contractor's general terms and conditions, or in a quotation, invoice, or other writing or 
document of any form or type that Contractor furnishes the City in connection with this 
Agreement, the Project, the Work, or a request for payment (collectively, "Contractor 
Document(s)"), .Contractor agrees that the types of provisions, terms, or conditions 
below that may be expressed in any Contractor Document are ineffective, stricken, 
overridden, and not enforceable as between the Parties: 

(i) Indemnification - any provisions that obligate the City to indemnify or 
hold Contractor ( or its affiliates, officials, employees, or sub-contractors) 
harmless for any damages, costs, losses, fees, expenses, actions, liability, 
or claims asserted by third parties against Contractor that relate to or arise 
from the Agreement (hereinafter "Claims"). Notwithstanding the 
inclusion of such provision in a Contractor Document, Contractor agrees 
that the City shall not indemnify, hold harmless, or release the Contractor 

6 



or any other person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any 
Claims arising out of or relating to the Agreement or the City's 
performance or nonperformance of its obligations thereunder. 

(ii) Late Payment Charges; Fees; Interest - any provisions (1) that 
obligate the City to pay any charges for penalties, interest, or fees at a rate 
higher than two-thirds of one percent per month (8% per annum) with 
respect to delinquent invoices or bills for goods, materials, or services, or 
(2) stipulating that a bill or invoice shall be considered delinquent if not 
paid by the City earlier than thirty (30) days after Contractor renders such 
an invoice or bill. 

(iii) Insurance - provisions that obligate the City to purchase or maintain 
any insurance policy or amount of coverage concerning the transactions 
contemplated in the Agreement, or to maintain a risk management 
program. Notwithstanding any such provision in the Agreement, nothing 
shall preclude the City from purchasing a specific type of insurance 
requested by Contractor in connection with the transaction contemplated 
in the Agreement; 

(iv) Governing Law - any provisions designating the law of any state, 
country, territory, or jurisdiction other than Alabama as the applicable or 
governing law. Notwithstanding any such provision in the Agreement, 
Contractor agrees that the meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of terms 
and provisions of the Agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising 
thereunder or relating thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Alabama; 

(v) Venue - any provision that selects the courts or tribunals in any 
county, state, or jurisdiction outside Alabama as the place for litigation or 
resolution of a dispute relating to the Agreement. Notwithstanding any 
such provision in the Agreement, Contractor agrees the venue of any such 
suit, action, or legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief shall be 
Jefferson County, Alabama, except to the extent otherwise required by 
applicable principles of law or if the courts in that County lack 
jurisdiction; 

(vi) Alternative Dispute Resolution - any provisions obligating the City to 
arbitrate, participate in mandatory mediation proceedings, or engage in 
other alternate dispute resolution processes to resolve any dispute related 
to the Agreement. Notwithstanding any such provision in the Agreement, 
the Parties may agree to participate in non-binding mediation of a dispute 
to be conducted on terms and conditions that they negotiate; 

(viii) Attorney's Fees: Court Costs: Litigation Expenses - any provisions 
obligating the City or making it responsible or liable for attorney's fees, 
court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges that may be incurred in 

7 



resolving disputes or claims related to the Agreement, except and to the 
extent such fees, costs, and charges would be assessed against the City 
under Applicable Law in the absence of any contractual provision 
imposing or assigning liability therefor; and 

(ix) Modification of City's Rights, Remedies & Duties - any provisions 
that (1) create or impose any duty or liability on the City, or that confer or 
purport to confer greater rights or remedies on the Contractor than existing 
under Applicable Law, or (2) modify, limit, reduce, restrict, or waive any 
rights or remedies that would be available to the City under Applicable 
Law arising from the performance or operations of Contractor ( or of any 
person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting on Contractor's 
behalf) or their default in performing their obligations under the 
Agreement. Notwithstanding, nothing herein shall preclude the City and 
Contractor from agreeing to limit, restrict or cap the amount of 
compensation or damages that a Party defaulting on its obligations under 
the Agreement would compensate the non-defaulting Party and that arise 
from the defaulting Party's breach or failure to perform. 

(Signature Page Follows) 

8 



Whereas, the undersigned, duly authorized representatives of the Parties execute 
this Agreement on behalf of their respective organization on the date(s) shown below. 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA (CITY) 

By: ---------- -----

Its: Mayor 

Date: - --------------

VIDEO INDUSTRIAL SERVICES (CONTRACTOR) 

By: ~ --------------

Its: 

Date: - --------------

9 



EXHIBIT A-SPECIFICATIONS 

1. Scope of Work 

See attached City Scope of Work (if any) and March 1, 2023 Contractor Proposal. 

If Contractor desires or is required to perform services on the Project that fall outside the 
Scope ("Additional Operations"), the Contractor shall advise the City Project 
Representative of the need for Additional Operations before undertaking those services, 
the parties shall reach agreement on the expense of any Additional Operations, and the 
City Project Representative shall approve any such Additional Operations before the 
Contractor performs same. No compensation for Additional Operations will be paid 
unless those Operations are approved in advance. 

2. Project Schedule. Weather permitting, Contractor expects to complete the Work 
within an approximate four ( 4) week period after execution of the Agreement and the 
City provides it a Notice to Proceed. 

3. Project Representatives. 

City Project Representative: 
Steven Gay 
3579 East Street 
Birmingham, AL 35243 
Email: gayj@mtnbrook.org 
Day Tel #: 205-802-3870 

4. Special Conditions. 

Contractor Project Representative: 
Heath Nelson 
7721 2nd Avenue North 
Birmingham, AL 35206 
hnelson@videoindustrial.com 
Day Tel# 205-798-0300 

Before commencing operations, Contractor will communicate with City residents 
concerning any Project operations that may affect their use of roads or of other properties 
in the Project area. Further, Contractor will communicate directly with the City Project 
Representative (and other City representatives identified by him) concerning any road 
closures required to perform the Work. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-042 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to execute a contractor agreement, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, 
between the City and Wright Construction Company with respect to the Brookwood Baptist 
Drainage Project. 

ADOPTED: This 13th day of March, 2023. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 13th day of March, 2023. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Heather Richards, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
hereby certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council 
of the City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on March 13, 2023, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Wright Construction/Brookwood Baptist Drainage project 2023-042 



December 16, 2022 

City Of Mountain Brook 
Attn: Sam Gaston I Ronnie Vaughn I Steven Gay 

Re: City of Mountain Brook I Overton Road Drainage Project 

Wright Construction Company proposes to furnish all labor, materials, and equipment necessary to complete 
the scope of work described below at the above referenced project: 

PHASE ONE Scope of Work to ~Include: 
*demo existing concrete valley gutter and remove spoils from site. 
*form/place/fin:ish approx. l75LF new 6/24 concrete curb/gutter (with integral color). 
*install concrete flume to direct water flow towards new 4'x4' storm box (with lid) 
that ties into existing storm pipe. 

PHASE ONE COST: $26,925 

PHASE TWO Scope of Work to Include: 
*demo small portion ofexisting concrete curb and remove spoils from site. 
*form/place/finish approx. 1 00LF new 6/24 concrete curb/gutter (with integral color). 

PHASE ONE COST: $7,800 

Exclusions: Permits, Engineering, Testing, Private Locate, Utility Relocation and/or repair, Unsuitable Soils, 

Thanks for the opportunity to bid on this project and as usual we look forward to working with the Mountain Brook team! 

Landon Ditto 
Lead Estimator/Project Manager 



CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

Wright Construction Company ("Contractor") enters this Contractor 
Agreement ("Agreement") with the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, a municipal 
corporation ("City"), effective as of the date last executed by a party below (the 
"Effective Date"). Contractor and City may be individually referenced herein as "Party" 
or collectively as "Parties." 

1. Project. Unless otherwise stated on the attached Exhibit A - Specifications 
(which is incorporated by reference), Contractor, at its expense, will furnish all the labor, 
materials, supplies, supervision, and equipment needed to perform the work, services and 
operations (collectively, the "Work") on the understated project (the Project") 

Name of Project: Brookwood Baptist Drainage Project 

Site of Project: 3449 Overton Road 
Mountain Brook, AL 35223 

2. Scope of Work. See Exhibit A (which includes the City Scope of Work, if 
any, and the December 16, 2022 Contractor Proposal, hereinafter the "Contractor 
Proposal") that is attached and incorporated herein. 

3. Undertaking of Parties. Contractor agrees to perform the Work in 
accordance with the terms, conditions and specification in this Agreement and on Exhibit 
A. City agrees to compensate Contractor and perform its other responsibilities set forth 
in the Contract Documents. 

4. Term/Termination. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the 
Effective Date and thereafter continue in effect for six (6) months (the "Term"). The 
period in which Contractor will complete the Project is set forth on Exhibit A. 

Notwithstanding the provision immediately above or any other language herein, 
City may terminate this Agreement before the expiration of its Term at the time 
designated in a written notice to Contractor if each of the following have occurred: (a) 
Contractor has defaulted on a material obligation to the City hereunder (a "Default"); and 
(b) following the City's provision of written notice of Default to Contractor, the 
Contractor fails to correct or remedy that Default within fifteen (15) days after receipt of 
that notice. The failure of the Contractor to timely perform the Work shall be considered 
an event of Default. This remedy is in addition to any other provided in the Agreement 
or available to City under law or in equity. 

Contractor's obligations herein shall survive the termination or expiration of the 
Term for these periods: Section 6(f) (Warranty on workmanship and materials) for one 
year following Project acceptance; other warranties in Section 6 for a period of one year, 
and Section 7(c) (Indemnification) for a period of two (2) years. 

1 



5. Contract Price/Invoice/Certification. Unless otherwise stated in the Special 
Conditions on Exhibit A or agreed in a writing signed by the Parties, City will pay 
Contractor the lump sum amount of Thirty-Four Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty-five 
Dollars ($34,725.00) as compensation for performing the Work (the "Contract Price"). 
Unless agreed in a writing signed by duly authorized representatives of both parties, the 
total amount payable to the Contractor for the Work shall not exceed the Contract Price 
(and agreed sum(s) payable for any Additional Operations contemplated on Exhibit A). 
In no event will the total amount paid to Contractor for its Work (including the Contract 
Price or any amount paid for Additional Operations) exceed $50,000.00. 

The City will pay the lump sum amount of the Contract Price for this Project at 
the following time. Within ten (10) days following the successful completion of the 
Project, Contractor will submit to City Project Representative an invoice for the Contract 
Price (as adjusted by any mutually agreed change orders signed by both parties). With 
such invoice Contractor shall submit records reasonably supporting its request for 
payment. Within five (5) days following receipt of that invoice, City Project 
Representative will review same, consult with Contractor and make any mutually agreed 
modifications to it, certify that the invoice is due to be paid, and forward that certified 
invoice to the City Clerk. The City Clerk will remit to the Contractor the amount 
certified for payment within twenty (20) days after it receives that certification. 

6. Warranties of Contractor. The Contractor warrants each of the following 
with respect to its Work: 

(a) that it expeditiously will perform its Work in a good and workmanlike 
manner that is consistent with level of skill and care that would be 
provided by other contractors performing operations under the same or 
similar conditions, and in accordance with the Project schedule; 

(b) that it, and all of its employees or any subcontractors (if authorized), 
will complete the Work in compliance with all codes, laws and 
regulations that are applicable to the Project; 

( c) that before commencing the Work, at its own expense, the Contractor 
will obtain all licenses, permits or other governmental authorizations 
needed to complete the Project, including without limitation, a 
business license and building permit issued by the City (collectively, 
"Licensing"). Contractor further agrees to maintain that Licensing 
throughout the performance of the Project; 

( d) that it has inspected the Site and any other locations at which it will 
perform the Work, and, based on that inspection and its expertise, that 
it has determined that each of those locations is reasonably suitable for 
Contractor to complete the Work; 

2 



( e) that the Contractor shall be responsible to remove and properly dispose 
of any debris related to its completion of the Project, and that it will 
leave each location where the Work is performed in reasonably clean 
condition; 

(f) that the Work will be free of any material defects in workmanship and 
materials for a period of one (1) year that shall commence on the date 
of acceptance of the Project; and 

(g) that all actions required to be taken by or on behalf of the Contractor to 
enter or execute this Agreement, and to perform its obligations and 
agreements hereunder, have been duly taken, and the person signing 
below on behalf of Contractor is authorized to execute this Agreement. 

7. Insurance/Safety/Indemnification. 

(a) Insurance. For the duration of this Agreement and for limits not less than 
stated below, Contractor, at its sole expense, shall maintain the following insurance with 
a company(ies) lawfully authorized to do business in Alabama and reasonably acceptable 
to City: 

(i) Comprehensive General Liability: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000), 
combined single limit and aggregate for bodily injury and property 
damage. This Comprehensive General Liability policy shall include 
coverage for premises/operations, products/completed operations, 
assumed contractual obligations, subcontractors, and broad form property 
damage; 

(ii) Automobile Liability: Automobile Liability covering owned and 
rented vehicles operated with policy limits of not less than One Million 
Dollars ($1,000,000), combined single limit and aggregate for bodily 
injury and property damage; 

(iii) Workers Compensation/Employer's Liability: Workers' 
Compensation as required by statute and Employer's Liability with limits 
of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) per occurrence. 

The Contractor may satisfy its insurance obligations hereunder through a combination of 
primary, umbrella and excess policies. Before the execution of this Agreement, the 
Contractor shall provide City a certificate(s) of insurance evidencing compliance with the 
requirements in this section. The certificate shall name City as an additional insured on 
the Comprehensive General Liability, Automobile Liability, and any applicable umbrella 
and excess policies. 

The City will not furnish any type, form, coverage or amount of insurance in 
connection with the Project. 

3 



(b). Safety. Contractor agrees that it (a) has the sole responsibility to identify any 
condition or hazard at the Site or other locations on City property that will prevent it from 
safely performing the Work, and (b) is exclusively responsible for performing the Work 
in a safe manner that does not put at risk the safety of persons or endanger property. 
Contractor shall take all reasonable precautions for the safety of, and shall provide all 
reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to: (i) its employees and all other 
persons who may be affected by the Work; (ii) all the Work and all materials and 
equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the Site, or under the 
care, custody or control of the Contractor or any of its representatives; and (iii) other 
property at the Work Site or adjacent thereto. 

(c). Indemnification. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
City and its agents, employees and officials (hereinafter collectively, the "Indemnitees") 
from and against all demands, actions, liabilities, expenses (including reasonable 
attorney's fees) or claims for damages by any third parties (including any employee, 
subcontractor or representative of the Contractor, hereafter a "Contractor 
Representative") that arise out of, relate to or are caused by any negligent act, omission 
or conduct by Contractor or any Contractor Representative in performing or failing to 
perform the Work or its (or their) responsibilities under this Agreement; provided that 
nothing herein shall obligate the Contractor to indemnify any of the Indemnitees for any 
claims resulting from the negligent conduct or the willful misconduct of the Indemnitees. 

The City will not indemnify Contractor ( or nay of its representatives or authorized 
subcontractors) for any claims that relate to or arise out of the Project. 

( d). Limitation of Liability. In no event may Contractor recover from the City 
any special, incidental, consequential or any other indirect damages whatsoever of any 
description (including, without limitation, damages for lost profits, lost advantage, lost 
opportunity, loss of savings or revenues or for increased cost of operations) or amount 
arising from the City's breach of its obligations hereunder. 

8. Project Representative. Each Party shall appoint and indicate on Exhibit A its 
representative who shall coordinate with the other Party on all matters related to the 
performance of the Work and the administration of this Agreement (the "Project 
Representative"). Any notice required hereunder shall be sufficiently given when sent to 
the appropriate Project Representative via United States certified mail, return receipt 
requested, or via overnight courier with receipt verification to the address set forth herein, 
or by personally delivering such notice to the party to be in receipt thereof. 

9. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

a. Entire Agreement. This Agreement which is comprised of this instrument, the 
City Scope of Work (if any) and the December 16, 2022 Contractor Proposal 
(collectively, the "Contract Documents") sets forth the entire understanding between the 
Parties concerning the matters herein, and all oral representations, prior negotiations, 
understandings, agreements, conditions, and terms discussed between them prior to 

4 



acceptance and signing of this Agreement are deemed to have merged herein. In the 
event of any conflict or inconsistency between provisions in the various Contract 
Documents, the provision(s) in the document in the order below shall control and take 
precedence: (1) this Agreement; (2) the City Scope of Work (if any); and (3) the 
Contractor Proposal. 

b. Countei:parts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts each of which 
when executed by the Parties shall be deemed to be a complete original. An electronic or 
facsimile copy of the executed contract or counterpart shall have the same legal force and 
effect as an original document. 

c. No Waiver. Any forbearance or delay on the part of City in enforcing any of 
its rights under this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of such rights. No 
terms of this Agreement shall be waived unless expressly waived in writing. 

d. No Assignment. Contractor may not assign its rights, obligations or the 
benefits of this Agreement to any third party without the written consent of City, which 
consent may be withheld for any reason. 

e. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made only for the benefit of 
the Parties. It is not intended, nor shall it be construed, to grant or bestow any benefit, 
right or privilege to any third party. 

f. Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor of City. This 
Agreement does not create any partnership, joint venture or principal-agent relationship 
between the Parties. Further, City retains no control or authority with respect to its 
means and methods in which Contractor (or any of its employees or representatives) 
performs the Work. 

g. Immigration Law Compliance. Contractor represents and warrants to the City 
that: (i) it does not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ, in 
Alabama, an ''unauthorized alien," as defined by the Beason-Hammon Alabama 
Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, §31-13-1, et seq., Code of Alabama 1975, as 
amended (the "Act"); (ii) it will emoll in the E-Verify program prior to performing any 
work on the Project in Alabama and shall provide documentation establishing that it is 
enrolled in the E-Verify program. During the performance of this Agreement, the 
Contractor shall participate in the E-Verify program as required under the terms of the 
Act and shall verify every employee in Alabama that is required to be verified according 
to the applicable federal rules and regulations; (iii) it will comply with all applicable 
provisions of the Act with respect to subcontractors, if any, that it engages on the Project 
by entering into an agreement with or by obtaining an affidavit from such subcontractors 
providing work on the Project in Alabama that such subcontractors are in compliance 
with the Act with respect to their participation in the E-verify program. Contractor 
further represents and warrants that it shall not hire, retain or contract with any 
subcontractor to work on the Project in Alabama which it knows is not in compliance 
with the Act; and (iv) by signing this Agreement, it affirms, for the duration of the 

5 



Agreement, that it will not violate federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for 
employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. 
Furthermore, if Contractor is found to be in violation of this provision, it shall be deemed 
in breach of the Agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom. 

h. Amendment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the provisions herein 
(including, without limitation, those concerning the Scope, Project Schedule and Contract 
Price) may be amended or modified except in accordance with the terms of a written 
instrument (or change order) signed by both Parties. 

j. Delayed Performance/Force Majeure Events. Neither Party shall be liable to the 
other for any failure to perform its respective obligations (including payment obligations) 
under this Agreement during any period in which its performance is delayed by 
circumstances beyond its reasonable control, such as fire, flood, war, embargo, strike, 
riot, or the intervention of any governmental authority (a "Force Majeure Event"). 
However, the delayed Party must promptly provide the other with written notice of the 
Force Majeure Event, the delayed Party's time for performance will be excused only for 
the duration of that Event, and, if that Event lasts longer than 30 days, then the other 
Party may immediately terminate, in whole or in part, this Agreement by giving written 
notice to the delayed Party. 

k. Open Trade. Pursuant to Ala. Code§ 41-16-5 (1975), Contractor represents 
and agrees that, by entering the Agreement, it is not currently engaged in, nor will it 
engage in, any boycott of a person or entity based in or doing business with a jurisdiction 
with which the State of Alabama can enjoy open trade. 

1. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, enforced, and 
construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Alabama (herein the "Applicable 
Law"). 

m. Ineffective Provisions in Contractor Documents. Notwithstanding any 
provisions, terms or conditions expressed in the Contractor Proposal, in any statement of 
Contractor's general terms and conditions, or in a quotation, invoice, or other writing or 
document of any form or type that Contractor furnishes the City in connection with this 
Agreement, the Project, the Work, or a request for payment (collectively, "Contractor 
Document(s)"), .Contractor agrees that the types of provisions, terms, or conditions 
below that may be expressed in any Contractor Document are ineffective, stricken, 
overridden, and not enforceable as between the Parties: 

(i) Indemnification - any provisions that obligate the City to indemnify or 
hold Contractor ( or its affiliates, officials, employees, or sub-contractors) 
harmless for any damages, costs, losses, fees, expenses, actions, liability, 
or claims asserted by third parties against Contractor that relate to or arise 
from the Agreement (hereinafter "Claims"). Notwithstanding the 
inclusion of such provision in a Contractor Document, Contractor agrees 
that the City shall not indemnify, hold harmless, or release the Contractor 

6 



or any other person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any 
Claims arising out of or relating to the Agreement or the City's 
performance or nonperformance of its obligations thereunder. 

(ii) Late Payment Charges; Fees; Interest - any provisions (1) that 
obligate the City to pay any charges for penalties, interest, or fees at a rate 
higher than two-thirds of one percent per month (8% per annum) with 
respect to delinquent invoices or bills for goods, materials, or services, or 
(2) stipulating that a bill or invoice shall be considered delinquent if not 
paid by the City earlier than thirty (30) days after Contractor renders such 
an invoice or bill. 

(iii) Insurance - provisions that obligate the City to purchase or maintain 
any insurance policy or amount of coverage concerning the transactions 
contemplated in the Agreement, or to maintain a risk management 
program. Notwithstanding any such provision in the Agreement, nothing 
shall preclude the City from purchasing a specific type of insurance 
requested by Contractor in connection with the transaction contemplated 
in the Agreement; 

(iv) Governing Law - any provisions designating the law of any state, 
country, territory, or jurisdiction other than Alabama as the applicable or 
governing law. Notwithstanding any such provision in the Agreement, 
Contractor agrees that the meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of terms 
and provisions of the Agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising 
thereunder or relating thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Alabama; 

(v) Venue - any provision that selects the courts or tribunals in any 
county, state, or jurisdiction outside Alabama as the place for litigation or 
resolution of a dispute relating to the Agreement. Notwithstanding any 
such provision in the Agreement, Contractor agrees the venue of any such 
suit, action, or legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief shall be 
Jefferson County, Alabama, except to the extent otherwise required by 
applicable principles of law or if the courts in that County lack 
jurisdiction; 

(vi) Alternative Dispute Resolution - any provisions obligating the City to 
arbitrate, participate in mandatory mediation proceedings, or engage in 
other alternate dispute resolution processes to resolve any dispute related 
to the Agreement. Notwithstanding any such provision in the Agreement, 
the Parties may agree to participate in non-binding mediation of a dispute 
to be conducted on terms and conditions that they negotiate; 

(viii) Attorney's Fees: Court Costs: Litigation Expenses - any provisions 
obligating the City or making it responsible or liable for attorney's fees, 
court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges that may be incurred in 

7 



resolving disputes or claims related to the Agreement, except and to the 
extent such fees, costs, and charges would be assessed against the City 
under Applicable Law in the absence of any contractual provision 
imposing or assigning liability therefor; and 

(ix) Modification of City's Rights, Remedies & Duties - any provisions 
that (1) create or impose any duty or liability on the City, or that confer or 
purport to confer greater rights or remedies on the Contractor than existing 
under Applicable Law, or (2) modify, limit, reduce, restrict, or waive any 
rights or remedies that would be available to the City under Applicable 
Law arising from the performance or operations of Contractor ( or of any 
person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting on Contractor's 
behalf) or their default in performing their obligations under the 
Agreement. Notwithstanding, nothing herein shall preclude the City and 
Contractor from agreeing to limit, restrict or cap the amount of 
compensation or damages that a Party defaulting on its obligations under 
the Agreement would compensate the non-defaulting Party and that arise 
from the defaulting Party's breach or failure to perform. 

(Signature Page Follows) 

8 



Whereas, the undersigned, duly authorized representatives of the Parties execute 
this Agreement on behalf of their respective organization on the date(s) shown below. 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA (CITY) 

By: - ------------

Its: Mayor 

Date: ---------------

WRIGHT CONSTRUCTION COMP ANY (CONTRACTOR) 

By: -------------

Its: 

Date: ---------------

9 



EXHIBIT A-SPECIFICATIONS 

1. Scope of Work 

See attached City Scope of Work (if any) and December 16, 2022 Contractor 
Proposal. 

If Contractor desires or is required to perform services on the Project that fall outside the 
Scope ("Additional Operations"), the Contractor shall advise the City Project 
Representative of the need for Additional Operations before undertaking those services, 
the parties shall reach agreement on the expense of any Additional Operations, and the 
City Project Representative shall approve any such Additional Operations before the 
Contractor performs same. No compensation for Additional Operations will be paid 
unless those Operations are approved in advance. 

2. Project Schedule. Weather permitting, Contractor expects to complete the Work 
within an approximate four (4) week period after execution of the Agreement and the 
City provides it a Notice to Proceed. 

3. Pro ject Representatives. 

City Project Representative: 
Steven Gay 
3579 East Street 
Birmingham, AL 35243 
Email: gayj@mtnbrook.org 
Day Tel#: 205-802-3870 

4. Special Conditions. 

Contractor Project Representative: 
Landon Ditto 
1051 Commerce Blvd. 
Pelham, AL 35124 
Email: landon@wccbirmingham.com 
Day Tel# 901-337-8828 

Contractor has all responsibility related to traffic control for the Project, including, 
without limitation, provision of signage and flagmen. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-043 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby authorizes the execution of an agreement between the City and United 
Ability, Inc. (dba Gone For Good Document Destruction and E-Waste Recycling), in the form as 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, with respect to a community document destruction and e-waste 
recycling event to be held in Mountain Brook. 

ADOPTED: This 13th day of March. 2023. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 13th day of March. 2023. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Heather Richards, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on March 13, 2023, as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

United Ability/ Document Destruction and E-Waste Recycling 2023-043 



GONE FOR GOOD 
DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION & E-WASTE RECYCLING 

SHRED & E-WASTE EVENT - CLIENT SERVICE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made effective as of the 6th day of March, 2023, by and between 
UNITED ABILITY, INC, an Alabama nonprofit corporation, doing business as GONE FOR GOOD DOCUMENT 
DESTRUCTION (hereinafter called "GFG") and the CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA with a billing address of 
56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213, (hereinafter called "Client"). GFG and Client hereby agree as follows: 

Terms and Conditions 

1. Event Address: Mountain Brook High School, 3650 Bethune Drive, Mountain Brook, AL35223 

2. Event Date and Time: Saturday, April 22, 2023 from 1:00 pm until 4:00 pm. 

3. Sole Terms. All services provided by GFG to Client for the Event are subject solely to the terms contained 
herein and any addenda agreed to by the parties in writing and attached hereto. No term or condition on 
Client's purchase order or any other instrument, agreement or understanding shall be binding upon GFG 
unless agreed to by the parties in writing. All typographical and clerical errors are subject to correction. 

4. Authorized Representative: Client's authorized representative ("Authorized Representative") shall be 
Tyler Slaten, slatent@mtnbrook.org, 205-802-3811. 

5. Services. 
(a) Paper Materials. GFG Mobile-based operations: At the Event GFG staff will receive and 
dump paper material delivered by the public for shredding into a large rolling container, 
which will be locked when not in use by GFG staff and during transport to the mobile shred 
truck. Containers filled with sensitive Materials will be tipped and shredded on the mobile 
GFG truck. Paper material that has been shredded will be transported by GPG to a 
contracted recycling entity for baling within GPG's sole discretion. 
(b) E-Waste. At the Event GPG Staff will receive electronic waste delivered by the public 
and properly dispose of that waste in the manner selected by GPG. 

6. Service Fees. 
Gone for Good will provide paper and e-waste disposal services for the Event at no charge. 

7. Limitation of Liability. GFG is not liable for (a) any loss or damage whatsoever relating to the Material or 
its destruction by GFG or (bl for the repair, replacement or restoration of any destroyed Material. GFG's 
aggregate liability, if any, arising under this Agreement or the provision of services to Client is limited to 
the amount of the Service Fees received by GFG from Client during the last year of the term of this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event will GFG be liable for any special, indirect, 
consequential, exemplary, or punitive damages, loss of profits or revenue, or loss of use even if informed 
of the possibility of such damages. To the extent permitted by applicable law, these exclusions and 
limitations will apply regardless of whether liability arises from breach of contract, warranty, tort 
(including but not limited to negligence), by operation of law, or otherwise. 

8. Setoff. Client will not set off invoiced amounts or any portion thereof against sums that are due or may 

1 
February 21, 2023 



become due from GFG, its parent, affiliates, subsidiaries or other divisions or units. 

9. Indemnification; Attorney's Fees and Collection Costs. Intentionally Deleted because Service Fees are not 
contemplated pursuant to this Agreement. 

10. Miscellaneous. This Agreement and any addenda attached hereto and agreed to by the parties in writing 
represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes any and all prior agreements and 
arrangements, whether oral or written between the parties that relate to the Event. No modification of 
this Agreement shall be binding unless in writing, attached hereto, and signed by both parties. This 
Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama. All words and phrases 
in this Agreement shall be construed to include the singular or plural number, and the masculine, feminine 
or neutral gender, as the context requires. The failure of either party to insist upon the performance of 
any provision of this Agreement, or to exercise any right or privilege granted to that party under this 
Agreement, will not be construed as a waiver of that provision or any other provision, and the provision 
will continue to be in full force and effect. If any provision is found to be illegal, invalid, or otherwise 
unenforceable by any judicial or administrative body, then other provisions will not be affected and will 
remain in full force and effect. Provisions herein which by their very nature are intended to survive 
termination or cancellation of this Agreement will survive such termination or cancellation. Any notices 
to be given by one party to the other will be considered properly given if deposited in the United States 
Mail or by express mail, sent to Client at its billing address identified on the first page of this Agreement, 
and if to GFG, to the respective GFG branch with whom the original contract was signed unless notice of 
a new address is given and received in accordance with this paragraph. 

2 
February 21, 2023 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement effective as of the day and year first 
shown above. 

UNITED ABILITY, INC. - "GFG" 

~ By: _______________ _ 

Name: Abe Bernstein 

lts: _____ D_i_re ___ c ___ to __ r __________ _ 

Date: March 6 2023 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA- "CLIENT" 

By: __________________ _ 

Name: _______________ _ 

Its: ________________ ___ _ 

Date: _________________ _ 

3 
February 21, 2023 


	Meeting Agenda
	1. Feb. 27th Minutes
	2. Surplus property
	3. BOE-Crestline Gym
	4. VIS-Sandhurst Road
	5. Wright-BWBC
	6. E-Waste Recycling



